
 

 

Am unrhyw ymholiad yn ymwneud â'r agenda hwn cysylltwch â  Emma Sullivan 
 (Rhif Ffôn: 01443 864420  Ebost: sullie@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 24 Mai 2017 

 
 
 
 
Annwyl Syr/Fadam,  
 
Bydd cyfarfod  Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd yn cael ei gynnal yn Ystafell Sirhywi, Tŷ 
Penallta, Tredomen, Ystrad Mynach ar Dydd Mercher, 31ain Mai, 2017 am 5.00 pm i ystyried 
materion a gynhwysir yn yr agenda canlynol. 
 

Yr eiddoch yn gywir, 

 
Chris Burns 

PRIF WEITHREDWR DROS DRO  
 

A G E N D A 
 

Tudalennau 
  

1  I dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb   
 

 
2  Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb. 

 
   
Atgoffi’r Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau 
personol a/neu niweidiol mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar yr agenda hwn yn unol â 
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer Cynghorwyr 
a Swyddogion. 

 
I gymeradwyo a llofnodi’r cofnodion canlynol:- 
 
3  Cynhaliwyd y Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd ar 1 Mawrth 2017.   

1 - 4 
 

Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus



 

 

I dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiad(au) canlynol:- 
 
4  Adroddiadau Blynyddol i Wasanaethau Democrataidd.   

5 - 10 
 

5  Hyfforddiant a Chwrs Cyflwyno (diweddariad llafar).   
 

 
6  Adroddiadau Blynyddol ar gyfer Aelodau Etholedig 2016/17 (diweddariad llafar).   

 
 

 
Cylchrediad: 
Cynghorwyr C. Andrews, P.J. Bevan, D. Cushing, W. David, D.T. Davies (Is Gadeirydd), 
Mrs C. Forehead, A. Hussey, L. Jeremiah, G. Kirby, C.P. Mann (Cadeirydd), Mrs G.D. Oliver, 
Mrs M.E. Sargent, G. Simmonds, C. Thomas, R. Whiting a W. Williams 
 
A Swyddogion Priodol 



 
 

 

 

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE  
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD AT PENALLTA HOUSE, YSTRAD MYNACH  
ON WEDNESDAY 1ST MARCH 2017 AT 5:00PM 

 

 
PRESENT: 

 
Councillor C.P. Mann - Chair 

 
Councillors: 

 
D. G. Carter, W. David, Mrs C. Forehead, Ms J.G. Jones, G. Kirby, S. Morgan, 
Mrs L.  Phipps, Mrs M.E. Sargent, Mrs E. Stenner and J. Taylor. 

 
Together with: 

 
C. Forbes-Thompson (Interim Head of Democratic Services), G. Williams (Acting IT 
Operations Manager), A. Veronese (Acting IT Development and Support Manager), 
L. Lane (Corporate Solicitor), A. Dredge (Committee Services Officer). 

 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors P.J. Bevan, D.T. Davies Vice-

Chair, Mrs P.A.  Griffiths, G. D. Oliver, Mrs D. Price. 
 
 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

There were no declarations of interest received at the commencement or during the 
course of the meeting. 

 
 
3. MINUTES – 17TH NOVEMBER 2016 
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on the 17th November 2016, were 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 

 
 

REPORTS OF OFFICERS 
 
4. MEMBERS ICT HARDWARE PROVISION (DEMONSTRATION) 
 

The Interim Head of Democratic Services gave a brief introduction to this item.  She 
referred Members to the report that was brought to Committee on the 21st 
September 2016 relating to Bring Your Own Device for Members.  At that meeting 

Page 1

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 3



Members recommended that a Project Team be created to produce a detailed 
specification of requirement for Members’ access to IT solutions.  The group would 
consider the IT devices and service requirements for Members for the period 
following the local elections in May 2017.  A Group was formed and terms of 
reference agreed on the 12th January 2017.  The Group attended a demonstration 
with IT on the 23rd February to consider the possible options which consisted of 2 
small portable devices.  Option A, is a tablet with a touch screen, pen and detachable 
keyboard, with a Citrix key and a docking station would be available in each of the 
group rooms.  Option B, is a slim laptop with touch screen which stands up and offers 
both landscape and portrait orientation. 
 
The Acting IT Operations Manager and Acting IT Development and Support Manager 
provided the Committee with a demonstration of both devices. 
 
Members discussed both options and it was explained that the ModGov application 
can be accessed on both devices and documents that had been previously opened 
within a Wi-Fi area could be accessed anywhere and would remain on the device for 
up to 6 months.  Some Members indicated they were happy with the status quo and 
other Members stated that the devices offer a fantastic opportunity and the best 
compromise in terms of accessing emails. 
 
Following consideration and discussion, Members indicated their preferred choice 
would be Option B. 
 
The Chair thanked the Acting IT Operations Manager and Acting IT Development 
and Support Manager for the demonstration and responding to questions raised 
during the course of the debate. 

 
 
5. PROTOCOL FOR ADDRESSING FULL COUNCIL 
 

The Interim Head of Democratic Services sought Members’ views in relation to 
addressing full Council as this issue has recently been raised.  The Council’s current 
Constitution states that Members should stand and this is generally agreed by 
Members.   
 
The Committee discussed the issues of standing and sitting whilst addressing full 
Council and some Members felt that standing is respectful to the Chair and it is 
useful for people in the public gallery.  Other Members felt that it is not disrespectful 
to sit and that this should be available for everyone.  It should not be a concession for 
disabled people as this would not be respectful to them.  Members were shown a clip 
of a recent webcast that showed the camera angles of Members both sitting and 
standing whilst addressing Council. 
 
Following consideration and discussion, Members agreed to revisit this issue 
following the Council Election in May 2017. 

 
 
6. UPDATE ON THE COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION 
 
 The Corporate Solicitor introduced the report that provided the Committee with an 

update and overview of the Council’s Constitution following consideration of a report 
by Council at its meeting on 12th May 2016.  The recommendations endorsed by 
Council were set out in paragraph 4.4 of the report. 

Page 2



 The Committee were advised that the Constitution is a “living document” and as such 
changes are made as and when required to incorporate for example alterations to 
delegations, terms of reference of committees or the addition of new legislation.  
Changes made to the Constitution in the last six months were appended to the 
report. 

 
 Members were also advised that changes were also in the process of being made to 

the Constitution regarding the structure, roles and responsibilities of Licencing 
Committee.  In addition Members were informed that prior to the AGM, Directors and 
Heads of Service will be asked to consider whether there are any changes required 
to the Scheme of Delegation which will be presented to Council for consideration in 
the annual report. 

 
 Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the 

recommendation in the report be approved.  By a show of hands this was 
unanimously agreed. 

 
  RESOLVED that the contents of the report be noted. 
 

Approved as a correct record subject to any amendments or corrections agreed and 
recorded in the minutes of the meeting held on 31st May 2017 there were signed by 
the Chair 

 
The meeting closed at 6:00pm 
 

 
_______________________ 

CHAIR 

Page 3



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 4



 
 

 

 

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE – 31ST MAY 2017 
 

 
SUBJECT: ANNUAL REPORT FOR DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

REPORT BY: INTERIM HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to present the Democratic Services Committee with the annual 

report of the Head of Democratic Services which includes details of the current and planned 
services and support provided to Elected Members. 

 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The annual report of the Head of Democratic Services sets out the current services and 

support provided to Members. It also provides an overview of how the resources within 
the Democratic Services Team are being maximised in the provision of the support, the 
conclusion is that adequate arrangements are currently in place. 

 
 
3. LINKS TO STRATEGY 
 
3.1 The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 requires the Council to provide support   

to Members and for the Democratic Services Committee to monitor the support. 
  
 
3.2 The Democratic Services Annual Report 2017 contributes to the well-being goals within the 

Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2016 by detailing how members are supported 
to carry out their role. Councillors, require resources such as IT and support in order to carry 
out their role as community representatives.  In addition the democratic process needs 
organisation and support and guidance in order to make decisions, on budget, policy etc. and 
thereby contribute to the following goals: 

 
• A prosperous wales 
• A resilient wales 
• A healthier wales 
• A more equal wales 
• A wales of cohesive communities 
 

THE REPORT 
 
4.1 Democratic Services has several different functions to support members; Committee 

services, Members training and development, Scrutiny, Cabinet support, Civic Office and 
all types of support for Members. 

 

Page 5

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 4



Committee Services 
 
4.2      There have been 193 committee meetings arranged between the annual meetings of Council 

in 2016 and 2017. This includes a number of special scrutiny meetings to consider the 
medium term financial plan. All meetings were properly advertised, with agendas and minutes 
produced.  

 
4.3 There have been 5 members’ seminars organised during the past year, on a wide range of 

issues, as follows: 
 

 Medium Term Financial Planning 

 Rent Smart Wales 

 Corporate Parenting Handbook 

 City Deal Programme 

 Treasury Management 
 
4.4 Committee services successfully implemented the requirements of the Welsh Language  

Standards in respect of public meetings. The standards require that all agendas for public 
meetings are published in Welsh and that Cabinet minutes are also available in Welsh. 

 

   Members Training and Development 
 
4.5 A number of Member training and support sessions have also been held as part of the 

training and development programme (including mandatory training, annual refresher 
training, and recommended training and requested training). A full review covering the 
review of the programme will be presented to the Democratic Services Committee in 
September 2017. 

 
 Scrutiny 
 
4.6 Members of the Democratic Services team have provided support and advice to the Council’s 

5 Overview and Scrutiny Committee meetings in 2016/17, including special scrutiny meetings 
to consider the Medium Term Financial Plan. A special Health Social Care and Wellbeing 
Scrutiny Committee meeting was also held to consider Public Spaces Protection Orders for 
Dog Control, where external witnesses were given the opportunity to speak on the proposals. 
The support and advice at Scrutiny committee meetings is provided by the Scrutiny Manager, 
Scrutiny Officer and Solicitors who attend all meetings.  

 
4.7  During 2016/17 Regeneration and Environment Scrutiny Committee set up a task and finish 

group to consider Operation and Management of Council Owned Car Parks. The review group 
has met on 4 occasions and carried out site visits, the group agreed to reconvene following 
the local government elections to consider their findings and make recommendations.   

 
4.8 The Scrutiny Review 2015 was carried out in response to the Wales Audit Office report 

‘Follow-up of the Special Inspection and Reports in the Public Interest’, dated January 2015. 
The outcome of the review resulted in 22 recommendations that were reported to Council in 
October 2015. The Scrutiny Manager completed the implementation of the recommendations 
during 2016, which reduced the number of agenda items at Scrutiny Committee meetings to a 
maximum of four. Protocols for Cabinet Member Written Statements at Scrutiny, Scrutiny 
Committee Forward Work Programmes and Report Requests have also been developed and 
are available on the Members Portal. These changes were in place from May 2016.  

 
4.8.1 An evaluation of the impact of the changes has been completed, consisting of a self-

evaluation and a peer review. The self-evaluation questionnaire for Members and senior 
officers was based on the ‘Characteristics of Good Scrutiny’ which is a recognised standard 
for measuring the effectiveness of scrutiny.   

 
4.8.2  Scrutiny Leadership Group members took part in a peer evaluation with both Monmouthshire 

and Newport Councils during March to April 2017. Members were asked to observe two 

Page 6



meetings at each council and answer the questions used in the earlier questionnaire, insofar 
as they were able in respect of the meeting being observed. A report on the findings will be 
reported to the first meeting of Scrutiny Leadership Group following the AGM. 

  
 Civic Support 
 
4.9 Members will be fully aware of the activities of the Civic Office as the Mayor gives regular 

updates at each full Council about the engagements attended.  During the civic year for 2016 -
2017 a total of 196 engagements were attended. Members of the Democratic Services team 
provided continuous support to the Mayor and Deputy Mayor in all of their duties including 
organising the Civic Service and Christmas concert.  

 
4.10 The Council Chauffeur provides chauffeuring service to the Mayor, Deputy Mayor, Council 

Leader and other senior Councillors. In addition he provides support to Legal Services Team 
by delivering documents and liaising with Court and Legal Chambers. 

 
 Cabinet Office 
 
4.11 During 2016, the PA to the Leader and Deputy Leaders decided to retire and it was agreed to 

advertise the position of PA to Leader, Deputy Leader and Cabinet. Subsequently the Cabinet 
support officer applied for and was promoted to the position. A decision was then made to 
delete the substantive position in order to make a contribution to the MTFP budget savings for 
Corporate Services.  In order to ensure that Cabinet members have support when the PA is 
absent or unavailable the Mayors Assistant was relocated to the cabinet office. These 
arrangements have worked successfully, the wider team can provide additional support if 
required.  

 
 Other Support 
 
4.12 Democratic Services team have implemented and are operating the webcasting system for full 

Council meetings since January 2016. In order to webcast each Council meeting an additional 
member of staff will attend in order to operate the webcast system. The Democratic Services 
team monitor the number of meetings viewed both live and from archive. The following table 
shows the number of views up to March 2017. 

 

 Webcast title  Live date Single IP address Multiple visits by an IP 
address 

Live 
viewers 

All 
viewers 

Live views All views 

Council Thu, 12th May 2016 - 
6:00 pm 

16 61 18 81 

Council Tue, 7th Jun 2016 - 
5:00 pm 

6 49 10 68 

Council Tue, 19th Jul 2016 - 
5:00 pm 

41 155 50 238 

Council Wed, 28th Sep 2016 - 
5:00 pm 

4 28 4 45 

Council Tue, 11th Oct 2016 - 
5:00 pm 

31 88 38 127 

Council Tue, 22nd Nov 2016 - 
5:00 pm 

12 66 13 120 

Council Tue, 24th Jan 2017 - 
5:00 pm 

17 89 20 123 

Council Tue, 31st Jan 2017 - 
5:00 pm 

21 69 25 98 

Council Wed, 22nd Feb 2017 - 
5:00 pm 

20 88 24 130 

Council Tue, 7th Mar 2017 - 
5:00 pm 

10 51 22 98 

Page 7



 
  
4.13 The Council was one of the only Councils in Wales to publish 100% of Annual Reports for all 

Members in 2013/14, 2014/15 and 2015/16. This was due to the support provided by the 
Democratic Services Team in preparing these reports and templates. The team are due to 
start assisting with the preparation of these for 2016/2017 shortly. 

 
4.14 The Council had provided all Members who required it with broadband lines and IT equipment 

so that they are able to access online reports and Council email. Support is provided by IT 
Training Team and Members can request specific training during their PDR or during their 
annual review of their training needs. Should any Member have any specific requirements such 
as specialist software to access reports, Democratic Services Team will assist.   

 
4.15 Members who have access to their own or council provided surface device can also download 

the Modern.Gov application. This allows the user to select Caerphilly Council and other 
Modern.Gov users (up to a maximum of three) such as other local authorities or Welsh 
Government. The application allows users to select specific committees and download all 
papers whilst connected to the internet, these can then be used whilst offline to read, annotate, 
and highlight specific areas. Democratic Services Team can assist any Members who would 
like further information or advice on this service.  

 
4.16 Democratic Services Committee considered the options for new IT equipment to be 

purchased following the local government elections 2017. This was considered in order to 
provide more flexibility for those Members needing access to email away from home. The 
committee were informed that Members could opt for a smaller laptop and a swivel token 
device (when using their own broadband provision), which allows access through any WiFi to 
the council email etc. This has been offered to new and returning councillors during the 
Member Induction, and will be implemented for new members in the first instance. 

 
4.17  The Democratic Services Team made all the arrangements for the Member Induction and 

Training arrangements for the period following the local government election in May 2017. 
The induction commenced with a Presentation and a Marketplace event to give Members the 
opportunity to find out more about the Councils’ services and meet with senior officers and 
other Councillors. 

 
4.18 The induction timetable also included mandatory training such as code of conduct and 

information governance and data protection. Recommended training on safe and smart 
working practices which included how to work safely in the community. In addition specific 
training was arranged on individual committees and panels.  

 
 
 Staff and Resources in Democratic Services  
 
4.19 In March 2016, the Democratic Services Committee designated the Scrutiny Manager as the 

Interim Head of Democratic Services. The Interim Head of Democratic Services has overall 
responsibility and statutory duties under the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 and 
manages the Democratic Services team. 

 
4.20 Each member of the Democratic Services Team provides specific support in the areas 

mentioned above. In particular, the Senior Committee Clerk coordinates all committee 
services and manages the 3 Committee clerks and a temporary administrative assistant.  

 
4.21 The Interim Head of Democratic Services (Scrutiny Manager) also manages the scrutiny 

function and oversees the temporary Scrutiny Officer, who coordinates the forward work 
programmes and deals with member/public requests as well as attending the scrutiny officers’ 
network meetings. The Scrutiny Manager and Scrutiny officer attend meetings of Scrutiny 
Leadership group and attend all Scrutiny Committee meetings to discuss the forward work 
programmes, further support is provided at scrutiny meetings by the wider Legal Services 
team. 

Page 8



 
WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 

 
5.1 This report contributes to the well-being goals as set out in links to strategy above. It is 

consistent with the five ways of working as defined within the sustainable development 
principle in the Act to ensure that councillors and co-opted members are supported take into 
account the wellbeing goals when making decisions, reviewing services and policies and 
consider the positive and negative impacts upon future generations, long term community 
resilience and economic, environmental and social capital. 

 
 
6. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 This report is for information purposes, so the Council's EqIA process does not need to be 

applied. 
 
 
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 There are no direct implications from this report.  
 
 
8. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are no direct implications as a result of this report. 

 
 
9. CONSULTATIONS 
 
9.1 There are no consultations that have not been included in the report  

 
 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 It is recommended that Democratic Services Committee note the contents of the report and 

provide any comments about support for 2017/2018. 
 
11. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
11.1 The annual report of the Head of Democratic Services sets out how the statutory duties under 

the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 have been met. 
 
12. STATUTORY POWER  
 
12.1 This report has been prepared following the Statutory Guidance relating to the Local 

Government (Wales) Measure 2011; Chapter 3 Section 16: Democratic Services Committee. 
 
 
 
Author: Catherine Forbes-Thompson Interim Head of Democratic Services 
Consultees: Chris Burns, Interim Chief Executive 

Nicole Scammell Acting Director of Corporate Services & Section 151 Officer 
        Gail Williams Interim Head of Legal & Governance /Monitoring Officer  
        Councillor Colin Mann, Chair Democratic Services Committee 
        Councillor Tudor Davies, Vice Chair Democratic Services Committee 

       Councillor Barbara Jones Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance,  
       Performance and Governance   

         

Page 9



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 10


	Agenda
	3 Cynhaliwyd y Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd ar 1 Mawrth 2017.
	4 Adroddiadau Blynyddol i Wasanaethau Democrataidd.

